Public Document Pack

Meeting of:
Date:
Time:
Venue:

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding
Sub-Committee
Tuesday, 21st January, 2020
6.00 pm.
Hollingworth B&C , First Floor, Training &
Conference Suite, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item
No.
1

AGENDA

Page No

Apologies
To receive any apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of Interest
Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

3

Items for Exclusion of Public and Press
To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to
be excluded from the meeting.

4

Urgent Items of Business
To determine whether there are any additional items of business
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5

Minutes

3-5

Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting of
Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee, held 3rd
October 2020.
6

Pennines Township Funds 2019/20
To consider applications for funding from the Township’s Capital and
Revenue Funds 2019/2020

6 - 101

Pennines Township Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee Members
Councillor David Bamford
Councillor Tom Besford
Councillor John Blundell
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Rina Paolucci
Councillor John Taylor
For more information about this meeting, please contact
01706 924715
peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5
PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB-COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 3rd October 2019
PRESENT: Councillor Mir (in the Chair); Councillors Bamford, Besford,
Davidson, Dearnley, Emsley, Paolucci and Taylor.
OFFICERS: T. Knight (Neighbourhoods Directorate) and P. Thompson
(Resources Directorate)
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: B. Woodburn (Link4Life) and seven members of
the public.
APOLOGIES
6
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Blundell,
Hartley, Hussain and Kelly.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
7
Members of the Sub-Committee declared interests in various funding
applications as follows:
a. Councillor Davidson declared personal and prejudicial interests in the
submitted applications from Milnrow and Districts Carnival Committee
(PEF/01/19) and from Pennines in Bloom (PF/12/19) taking no part in
the discussion or voting thereon.
b. Councillor Dearnley declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the
submitted application from Pennines in Bloom (PF/12/19) taking no part
in the discussion or voting thereon.
c. Councillor Emsley declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the
submitted application from Link4Life (PF/08/19) taking no part in the
discussion or voting thereon.
d. Councillor Paolucci declared a personal and prejudicial interest in the
submitted application from Link4Life (PF/08/19) taking no part in the
discussion or voting thereon.
MINUTES
8
The Sub-Committee considered the minutes of its last meeting held 3rd
July 2019.
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township Delegated and
Funding Sub-Committee, held, 3rd July 2019, be approved as a correct record.
PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2019/20
9
The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of
Neighbourhoods which provided an update on the revenue and capital
expenditure, commitments and balances of the Pennines Township Funds
2019/20, which would enable the Sub-Committee to consider the allocation of
funds to proposed projects.

Page 3

Alternatives considered: In considering the report, Members considered
whether or not to approve the allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.
Resolved:
1.
That the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines
Township revenue and capital funds as detailed in Appendices 1 and 2 of the
submitted report, be noted;
2.
That decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in Appendix
3 of the submitted report, be noted;
3.
That it be noted that the Townships and Communities Manager has
assessed proposed projects that were to be considered for funding against
the criteria of eligibility for the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the
Township and that any specific risks were identified in the submitted report;
4.
That the applications for Township Funds 2019/20 be dealt with as
outlined in the table below.
Reference
Events Fund
PEF/01/19
Projects Fund
PF/06/19

Application

Decision

Milnrow and District
Carnival Committee

Approved: £1,837.

Princess Road Surveys

The application for
funding be declined.
The application for
funding be declined,
however the applicants
be encouraged to liaise
with Township
Management staff and
submit a revised
application to a future
meeting of the SubCommittee.
Approved: £1,520

PF/08/19

Link4Life (Skills4Sport
Programme)

PF/11/19

Bee Inspired – Buzz
Educational Activities
(NatureEd CIC)
Pennines in Bloom
Milnrow Brass Band

PF/12/19
PF/15/19
Capital Fund
PTC/13/19

PTC14/19

Holy Trinity Project 2020

Arm Road/James Street –
Grass Verge Removal

Page 4

Approved: £1,918.59
Approved: £3,878.50
Consideration of this
application be deferred
for consideration at a
future meeting of the
Sub-Committee
Approved: £6,500

5.
That the Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with
the Chair and Vice Chair of the Sub-Committee, be given delegated authority
to make decisions on any deferred projects.
Reasons for the decision:
The recommendations in the report were presented as management of the
Pennines Township Fund is a function that is delegated to the Pennines
Township Delegated and Funding Sub Committee. Pennines Township Funds
are allocated to projects that benefit the Township’s community and
environment, and realise the Township’s priorities and which will enable the
Sub-Committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines Township
Fund to ensure the continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
Eligible for Call-in: Yes

Page 5

Agenda Item 6
Report to Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee
Date of Meeting
Portfolio
Report Author
Public Document

21 January 2020
Neighbourhoods,
Community & Culture
Sharron Worrall
Public Document

Pennines Township Funds 2019/20
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

Members to be updated on revenue and capital expenditure, commitments
and balances of Pennines Township Funds 2019/20 and enable the allocation
of funds to proposed projects.

2.

Recommendation

2.1

Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Pennines
Township revenue and capital funds in Appendix 1 and 2.

2.2

Members note decisions made under delegated authority as detailed in
Appendix 3.

2.3

Members consider and approve, refuse or defer the allocation of funds to
proposed projects detailed in Appendix 4.

2.4

Members note the Townships & Communities Manager has assessed
proposed projects to be considered for funding against the criteria of eligibility
for the Pennines Township Fund, the priorities of the Township and any
specific risks have been identified (information detailed in Appendix 4).

2.5

The Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and
Vice Chair of the committee, to be given delegated authority to make
decisions on any deferred projects.

3.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

Management of the Pennines Township Fund is delegated to the Pennines
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee.

3.2

Pennines Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

3.3

To enable the committee to monitor and review the use of the Pennines

Page 6

Township Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.
4.

Key Points for Consideration

4.1

Members are asked to note expenditure, commitments and balances of
Pennines Township Funds 2019/20 in Appendix 1 and 2. Actual/committed
spend for revenue funds is 56.35% and capital funds is 79.43%.

4.2

Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Pennines
Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee to ensure that Members are
aware of the projects that have been agreed within their Ward. Members are
asked to note the decisions made under the delegated arrangements since
the last committee meeting in Appendix 3.

4.3

Projects have been identified for funding from Pennines Township Funds
2019/20. Members are asked to decide whether to approve, reject or defer
the allocation of revenue and capital funds to these proposed projects listed in
Appendix 4.

4.4

To reduce the potential for carry forward of funds during 2019/20, Members
are asked to agree to give delegated authority to make decisions on any
deferred projects to the Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the committee.

4.5

Alternatives Considered
In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the
allocation of funds to projects as appropriate.

5.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

Pennines Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2019/20 in
Appendix 1 and 2.

5.2

Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use
of the Pennines Township Fund to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3

Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring
reports will be presented to future committees.

6.

Risk and Policy Implications

6.1

Specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report will be
identified for the proposed projects in Appendix 4.

6.2

The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework. The plan
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3

The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those

Page 7

priorities.
6.4

Under the Borough of Rochdale Compact with the voluntary sector the Council
has made a commitment to consider the impact on service users of any
changes to the funding arrangements for the voluntary sector and to provide
them with at least three months’ notice of any changes and liaise with them
and any relevant stakeholders to mitigate the impact of reduced funding.
Therefore, if Members are inclined not to continue funding the provision of a
service provided by the voluntary sector, Members should be mindful of their
obligations under the Compact.

7.

Consultation

7.1

Pennines Township Delegated & Funding Sub Committee receives regular
monitoring reports about the use of the funds. Any proposal for funding
requires support from at least one Member. All proposals will to be consulted
on as appropriate with Members, residents and other stakeholders.
Background Papers

Place of Inspection

None

N/A

For Further Information Contact:

Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 8

APPENDIX 1

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2019/20

£

Budget b/f (2018/19)
Base Budget 2019/20
Income from other funds/services 2019/20
Budget Available 2019/20
Budgets transferred to services/actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2019/20

51,931
81,500
133,431
60,322
14,871
75,193
58,238

Forecast Outturn
Potential under/overspend 2019/20

133,431
-

Page 9
Funds

Projects Fund
Events Fund
Pennines Town Centres Fund
Littleborough Lakeside Ward Fund
Milnrow & Newhey Ward Fund
Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Fund
Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Fund
Total

Balance
b/f 2018/19
£
34,986
12,885
2,060
2,000
51,931

Base
Budget
2019/20
£
64,500
5,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
3,000
81,500

Income/
Adjustments
-

% Actual
Spend
45.21%

% Actual +
Committed
56.35%

Revised
Budget
2019/20

Actuals to
Period
£

99,486
5,000
12,885
3,000
5,060
3,000
5,000
133,431

40,474
462
400
2,000
1,575
2,854
47,765

Committed
to Period
£
8,196
1,837
4,538
300
14,871

Virements
within
Township
Funds
£
-

Virements
to Services
£
11,557
1,000
12,557

Budget
Total to
remaining
Period
2019/20
£
£
60,227
1,837
5,000
400
2,000
1,875
3,854
75,193

39,259
3,163
7,885
2,600
3,060
1,125
1,146
58,238

APPENDIX 2

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2019/20

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2019/20

£

Budget b/f 2018/19
Base Budget 2019/20
Income/Adjustments 2019/20
Budget Available 2019/20
Budgets transferred to other services/actuals
Commitments
Total Actual + Commitments
Budget Remaining 2019/20

4,600
77,600
82,200
65,288
65,288
16,912

Forecast Outturn
Potential under/(over)spend 2019/20

82,200
-

Page 10

Funds

Capital Fund
Littleborough Lakeside Ward Capital Fund
Milnrow & Newhey Ward Capital Fund
Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund
Wardle & West Littleborough Ward Capital Fund
Total

Balance b/f
2018/19
£
4,336
264
4,600

Budget
Income/
2019/20
Adjustments
£
69,600
2,000
2,000
2,000
2,000
77,600

-

% Actual
Spend
79.43%

% Actual +
Committed
79.43%

Revised
Budget
2019/20

Actuals to
Period
£

73,936
2,264
2,000
2,000
2,000
82,200

17,516
859
18,375

Committed
to Period
£
-

Virements
within Virements
Township to Services
£
Funds
£
42,901
1,006
2,000
1,006
46,913

Budget
Total to
remaining
Period
2019/20
£
£
60,417
1,006
2,000
1,865
65,288

13,519
1,258
2,000
135
16,912

APPENDIX 3

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS - DELEGATED DECISIONS FOR INFORMATION
Members note the delegated decisions made by the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Pennines Township Committee
Ref No.

Name of Project

Project Description

PCW/04/19

Wasp Mill Drive Grit
Bin

Supply and installation of a grit bin on Wasp Mill Drive, Wardle as
this road becomes hazardous during wintry conditions.

PF/16/19

PW/05/19

PW/04/19

Page 11

PW/02/19

PCW/05/19

PW/07/19

PW/03/19

Ward

Wardle &
West
Littleborough
Wardle Christmas
Construction and installation of a wooden fence around a Christmas Wardle &
Tree Fence
tree in Wardle.
West
Littleborough
Brookfield Drive
Clear vegetation from the ditch/watercourse at the rear of 26-32
Wardle &
Ditch/Watercourse
Brookfield Drive, Off Starring Way, Littleborough to alleviate flooding West
Clearance
in the area.
Littleborough
The Nightbus - Drag Littleborough Library propose to host The Nightbus - Drag Queen
Littleborough
Queen Story Time at Story Time that will offer service users through the media of drag an Lakeside
Littleborough Library inclusive story time that celebrates different cultures and identities
and promotes understanding and awareness of the LGBQT
community.
Christmas Hampers Our Local Pantry Smallbridge propose to support their service users Smallbridge &
and Coffee
at Christmas with the supply of a small Christmas food hamper as for Firgrove
Mornings/Drop In
the local community on low income can find this time of year a
Sessions
financial strain. Also a coffee morning/drop in advice session to be
organised at Stevenson Square every Thursday for service users
and the wider community during the winter months. It will provide an
opportunity to reduce isolation and loneliness, share experiences,
make friends and receive support/advice.
Welbeck Avenue Salt Supply and installation of a new salt bin on Welbeck Avenue,
Bin
Littleborough as this location has been reported as hazardous during
icy weather conditions.
Shore in Bloom
Shore in Bloom propose to enhance the local environment with the
Community Project
creation of attractive floral displays in public areas.
Ribble Avenue Trees Trees along Ribble Avenue, Shore will be thined, crown lifted and
felled to reduce the density of the shade beneath the trees, address
imbalance/stability and improve their appearance.

Page 1 of 2

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£1,006.46 01 October 2019
Awarded £1,006.46
from Ward Fund

Amount

£1,767.11 30 October 2019

Awarded £1,767.11
from Projects Fund

£380 30 October 2019

Awarded £380 from
Ward Fund

£400 31 October 2019

Awarded £400 from
Ward Fund

£1,575 31 October 2019

Awarded £1,575
from Ward Fund

Littleborough
Lakeside

£1,006.46 06 November 2019

Awarded £1,006.46
from Ward Fund

Wardle &
West
Littleborough
Wardle &
West
Littleborough

£544.30 29 November 2019

Awarded £544.30
from Ward Fund

£929.50 04 December 2019

Awarded £929.50
from Ward Fund

Ref No.

Name of Project

Project Description

Ward

PW/08/19

Christmas at
Smallbridge Library

Christmas event at Smallbridge Library on 19 December 2019 at
Smallbridge &
5pm–7pm to bring the community together during the festive period Firgrove
as it can be a lonely time of the year for some people. Residents will
be invited to participate in activities with refreshments made
available in a social and friendly environment.

Page 12
Page 2 of 2

Amount

Delegated Decision
Decision
Date
£300 13 December 2019 Awarded £300 from
Ward Fund

APPENDIX 4
PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUNDS 2019/20

Projects Fund 2019/20 available for allocation = £39,259

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Ref No

Name of Project

PF/18/19

Rochdale Hornets
Pennines
Yes
£2,850
Sporting Foundation
Township
People
Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation is the charitable arm of Rochdale Hornets Rugby Club and they propose to deliver the Pennines TRY programme that will provide
young people with the opportunity to participate in a series of high quality rugby league afterschool coaching sessions for 27 weeks (extra curricular) in Pennines Township
schools. Using the inspiration of the Rugby League World Cup (RLWC2021) that will be taking place in 2021 across the country between 23 October and 27 November
2021 and in the same year Rochdale Hornets Rugby League Club will be 150 years, Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation want to ‘get more young people involved and
playing rugby league more often’, raise the sport in the borough and encourage local schools to sign up to the resources and promote the RLWC2021 Education Resources
as part of their school’s work through the TRY programme. It is proposed to establish a brand new Junior Hornet 150 Club that will see 150 young people from across the
four Townships attend every Hornets home fixture and become lifelong supporters of rugby league and Rochdale Hornets and players of the future. The TRY programme
will aim to support young people into rugby league and an active lifestyle and increase the awareness and profile of the RLWC2021 in 2020 to build the momentum for the
event in the borough. (Application form at Appendix 4A)

Project
Description

Ward

Pennines TRY

Page 13

Risk implication None
PF/19/19
The Star Tree Studio @ The Gig House
Project
Description

Cost

Pennines
Yes
The Star Tree
£10,800
Township
People
Studio CIC
The Star Tree Studio CIC propose to develop a disused Council owned building, ‘The Gig House’ in Hare Hill Park, Littleborough, for the purpose of creating a public studio
space so they can deliver fun, accessible art and craft activities, classes and workshops for children and their parents/carers and adults. A renovation of the building that is
sensitive, appropriate and in keeping with the local area will enable The Star Tree Studio to provide a facility so they can work with members of the local community and
partner organisations to develop new services and secure funds to deliver some activities that are free to access. Also a specialist sensory room for babies and children
with additional needs is planned as there is currently no provision available in the Pennines Township area. A Council owned property will be improved and the local
community will benefit from The Star Tree Studio’s opportunity to expand and deliver new services from The Gig House. (Application form at Appendix 4B)

Risk implication None

Page 1 of 3

Town Centres Fund 2019/20 available for allocation = £7,885

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Ref No

Name of Project

PTCF/01/19

Littleborough Food &
Yes
£2,669.60
Drink Sub Committee
People
Place
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival aims to support and promote business in Littleborough by encouraging local shops, cafes, restaurants and pubs to participate in a
community event together to attract visitors into Littleborough. The Festival planned for Saturday 13 June 2020 from 11am to 4pm will celebrate the quality chefs,
restaurants and local food and drink producers that exist in Littleborough and the surrounding nearby areas, and it will provide them with an opportunity to showcase their
products to a wider audience. A mobile kitchen will host a local chef’s cooking demonstrations to the public. A professional event stage will be provided for musical
entertainment with a seating and standing area. Approximately 24 food and drink stalls will be situated on Hare Hill Road and Victoria Street. A designated children’s zone
will accommodate face painters, balloon modellers, bubbles and interactive games for children and the popular children’s cookery classes will be facilitated by Littleborough
Deli throughout the day. The festival will attract people into Littleborough and promote the area as a place to visit and shop. (Application form at Appendix 4C)

Project
Description

Ward

Cost

Pennines
Township

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2020

Page 14

Risk implication None

Capital Fund 2019/20 available for allocation = £13,519

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Ref No

Name of Project

PTC/13/19

Holy Trinity Project 2020

Ward
Littleborough
Lakeside

Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

Cost

Yes
PCC of Holy Trinity
£20,000
People
Church
Place
Holy Trinity Parish Church, Littleborough works alongside the community to improve their lives through involvement in social activities. Project 2020 is an initiative to
Project
address the limitations of the existing church building concerning providing services (outside of faith based support) and facilities for user groups and the wider community.
Description
A new floor is a major element of the structural work required to realise the building’s potential as a space for community use. Costs are based on previous work that the
Vicar has carried out in another post and discussions with an Architect and the exact cost of the project will not be known until the project is submitted for tender. The
church has raised £80,000 and secured a grant of £5,000 from The Beatrice Laing Trust for Project 2020 and plan fund raising events, applying to a variety of grant funding
bodies and set up a crowd funding site. (Application form at Appendix 4D)
Risk implication None

Page 2 of 3

Pennines Township Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Ref No

Name of Project

Ward

Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

PTC/17/19

Calder Street Restrictions

Smallbridge &
Firgrove

Yes
Place

Project
Description

Extension of the no waiting restrictions and no loading restrictions on both sides of Calder Street and installation of a pedestrian dropped crossing 15 metres North East
from the junction of Calder Street and Albert Royds Street, Rochdale will deter indiscriminate parking. Also guard rails and bollards will prevent vehicles from
mounting/parking on the footway. The guard rails will guide pedestrians to the crossing point and prevent children from running from the pedestrian access gate into the
carriageway. Hamer Community Primary School have reported unsafe driving and parking around the school as a serious concern for them, members of the public and
parents with the safety of children their priority. (Project brief and correspondence from Hamer Community Primary School at Appendix 4E)

Cost

Hamer Community
Primary School

£8,000

Page 15

Risk implication Risks that may change the estimate are objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its development resulting in
additional costs. Also if the scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or TfGM and if Ward Councillors require further
information, justification or scheme content. The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections received during the legal process.
To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time having to be expended. Also the estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to the
scheme at committee resulting in the scheme requiring readvertising.

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund 2019/20 available for allocation = £2,000

Smallbridge & Firgrove Ward Capital Fund 2019/20 - Proposed projects for decision
Ref No

Name of Project

Ward

Fund Criteria & Request
Priorities Met
Originator

PCW/06/19

Ditton Mead Close bollard

Smallbridge &
Firgrove

Yes
Place

Project
Description

Supply and installation of one bollard on the footway between 1-3 Ditton Mead Close, Smallbridge to prevent parking on the footway. (Project brief at Appendix 4F)

Risk implication Esitmate may change if complaints are received which delay or alter the scheme

\

Page 3 of 3

Cost

Councillor Hussain

£150

APPENDIX 4A

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PF/18/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

PENNINES TRY

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
(1) To promote community participation in healthy recreation by providing facilities for the playing of Rugby
League within the community of Rochdale Borough and other sports capable of improving health.
(2) To provide and assist in the provision of facilities for recreation and other leisure time occupation of such
persons who have need for such facilities by reason of youth, age, ill health, disability, financial hardship,
poverty or social and economic disadvantage or the public at large in the interest of social welfare and with
the object of improving their conditions of life.
(3) To help young people, especially but not exclusively through leisure time activities so as to develop their
capabilities that they may grow to full maturity as individuals and members of society.

d) Contact name

Julie Durrant

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode

Crown Oil Stadium, Sandy Lane, Rochdale. OL11 5DR

g) Email address
h) Web address

Hornetsrugbyleague.co.uk/foundation

Page 16
Form PT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
W/42/18 & M/53/18 Castleton Junior Hornets – Grant £1,500
CE/22/18 Spotland Junior Hornets – Grant £1,000
RP/04/18 League for Life (Rochdale Township) – Grant £4,250
HP/19/18 League for Life (Heywood Township) – Grant £4,250
MP/06/18 League for Life (Middleton Township) – Grant £4,250
PF/05/18 League for Life (Pennines Township) – Grant £4,250
Additional information entered by the Township Office from their records:
W/39/16 Rochdale Hornets Wheelchair Rugby – Grant £3,324.82
RP/06/16 Origin Series 2017 (Rochdale Township) – Grant £4,360
HP/25/16 Origin Series 2017 (Heywood Township) – Grant £4,400
MP/10/16 Origin Series 2017 (Middleton Township) – Grant £4,360
PF/08/16 Origin Series 2017 (Pennines Township) – Grant £4,360
RP/15/15 Origin Series 2016 (Rochdale Township) – Grant £4,800
HP/17/15 Origin Series 2016 (Heywood Township) – Grant £4,800
PF/20/15 Origin Series 2016 (Pennines Township) – Grant £4,800
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

Page 17
Form PT03

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Background:
In 2021 Rugby League World Cup (RLWC2021) will be taking place across the country between 23rd of
October and the 27th of November 2021. Sixteen teams will participate in the 2021 Tournament. An iconic
event set to be the biggest and best Rugby League World Cup in history.
In the same year Rochdale Hornets Rugby League Club will also be 150 years old – one of the oldest sports
clubs in the borough.
Using the inspiration of this event and the lead up to a very important year for Rochdale Hornets we want to
start to get ‘more young people involved and playing Rugby League more often’, raise the profile of the
sport in the borough and at the same time encourage our local schools to sign up to the resources and
promote the RLWC2021 Education Resources as part of our schools work through our exciting Rochdale
TRY Programme.
Details: The Pennine TRY Programme will provide:


A series of high-quality rugby league afterschool coaching sessions (extra-curricular) in primary and
secondary schools as per attached list
 Raise the profile of the RLWC2021 in the borough by encourage local schools to sign up to the RFL
resources and promote RLWC2021 Education Recourses as part of any future school delivery
educational programmes. Not only do we want to deliver high quality coaching sessions across our
Rochdale borough schools we want to ensure the schools continue to use the resources to help
provide additional support to schools and schoolteachers who are otherwise unfamiliar with rugby
league. These free resources are a fantastic guide to help support teachers deliver rugby league
and can be adapted to best suit the needs of the playing group. The Education programme also
offers free access to resources and offer and updates of relevant World Cup activities. This will be
done through various interventions with schools at school assemblies/other school time: see
attached list
 Support the development of a pre match Junior Hornet 150 Club at Rochdale Hornets at every
home game with 150 children from the borough, across the 4 townships taking part. The club will be
the community setting where we signpost all the interest young people from the school programme
to become lifelong supporters of rugby league and Rochdale Hornets and players of the future.
Target 150 children to attend a game at hornets and be part of our 150 club.
Benefits this programme will bring:
 We know we can evidence that creating school/club link leads to increased participation and children
become healthier, confident and resilient.
 Increase the awareness and profile of the RLWC 2021 across school children in the borough Without our intervention schools will probably not take part or sign up to grow the interest without our
partnership approach.
 Increase in the number of schools delivering Rugby League
 Increase number of young people playing Rugby League
 Establish a brand-new Junior Hornet Club that will see 150 young people across the 4 townships be
accommodated in a safe place environment every time the team have a home fixture.
 To leave a long-lasting legacy for Rugby League in the borough

Page 18
Form PT03

Need for the Programme:


If we don’t get support from the Township we will not be able to raise the profile of the RLWC2021 in
the borough of Rochdale and support schools to sign up to the Educational Resources available to
them. Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation are the best placed organisation to be able to do this
with schools. We have 2 full-time dedicated rugby league qualified coaches. The work with schools
needs to be done in 2020 in order to start and build the momentum of the RLWC2021.
 There are currently only 3 rugby clubs in the borough, compared to 8 clubs 10 years ago- Rochdale
Mayfield ARLFC, Rochdale Cobras and Littleborough Junior RL Club – if we don’t continue to offer
Rugby League to primary aged school children this sport is in danger of being lost in the borough
forever. We need to put in place more interventions to ensure that Rugby League is continued to be
supported and delivered to young people of the borough – what better way to do this than using the
power of the RLWC2021 and the celebration of Rochdale Hornets Rugby League Club being 150
years old.
 We need to ensure we signpost children from the programme into activities outside of school
curriculum time to keep the interest and this can only be done through extra curriculum activity and
also signposting to our Junior Hornet 150 Club and the 3 rugby league clubs in the borough.
 The Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation is the charitable arm of Rochdale Hornets Rugby Club.
With the support of the Township we can continue to ensure Rugby league is a sport young people
choose to do in the borough.
To ensure we offer to support young people into rugby league and taking a step into an active lifestyle.

Project start date

January 2020

Project completion
date

December 2020

Page 19
Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£3872.50

b) Amount of grant required

£2850.00

c) Amount from other sources

£1022.50

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Rochdale Hornets Sporting
Foundation

Rochdale Hornets Rugby Club

What they may fund
Equipment for the programme
Equipment – balls and coaching
materials @ £1000.00 (divided x
4)

Dates of funding decisions
£250.00

FREE Match Tickets, Room Hire
at Stadium, staff on match days
3090.00/4 townships

£772.50

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost



Cost of extra curriculum coaching provision over 27 weeks – 1
coach x 1 hour per day x 3 days @ £25 per hour x 27 weeks
(covering schools as per attached)
 Cost of delivering in schools assemblies – 1 coach @ £25 per
hour x 1 hour x 16 schools
 Marketing material for RLWC2021 and Junior Hornets
Programme – cost and design of leaflets and social media
adverts, printing of leaflets (£950.00 divided x 4 townships)
 Free Match Tickets to Rochdale Hornets x 150 children £5 per
ticket 750.00, Hire of room at Rochdale Hornets on match day
13 match days x £20 per hour x 3 hours 780.00 , 2 coaches x 3
hours x 13 @ £20.00 per hour 1560.00 (total 3090.00 divided
/per 4 townships )
 Certificates and medals @ £5 per child x 150 (£750.00 divided
x 4)
Equipment – balls and coaching materials @ £1000.00 (divided x 4)

2,025.00

TOTAL

3872.50

Page 20

400.00

237.50

772.50

187.50
250.00

Form PT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
.volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:









Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Julie Durrant

Full name

Niel Wood

Position

Foundation Manager

Position

Chair of Board

Date

12th November 2019

Date

12th November 2019

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
 answered all the relevant questions and
 enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Pennines Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 922227
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 21

Form PT03

LIST OF SCHOOLS

NOTE

Rochdale North Township (16 schools)
All the schools on this list will be targeted with the RLWC 2021
Education Recourses
The schools highlighted will be the 20 schools (10 per township)
we will target with the extra-curricular activity
January – February 5 schools over 7 weeks
February – Easter 5 schools over 7 weeks
Easter – May 5 schools over 7 weeks
May – July 5 schools over 7 weeks
Total 20 schools over 27 weeks

Name
All Saints CE Primary School
Caldershaw Primary School
Greenbank Primary School
Healey Primary School
Heybrook Primary School
Meanwood Community Primary School
Norden Community Primary School
Shawclough Community Primary School
Spotland Primary School
St Patrick's RC Primary School
St Vincent's RC Primary School
Whittaker Moss Primary School
Falinge Park High School
Oulder Hill Community School and Language College
Redwood School
Brownhill School
Rochdale South Township (20 schools)
Name
Ashfield Valley Primary School
Bamford Academy
Belfield Primary School
Brimrod Community Primary School
Broadfield Community Primary School
Castleton Primary School
Deeplish Primary Academy
Holy Family RC Primary School
Lowerplace Primary School
Marland Hill Community Primary School
Sacred Heart RC Primary School
Sandbrook Community Primary School
St Edward's CE Primary School
St Gabriel's RC Primary School
St John's RC Primary School
St Mary's CE Primary School
St Peter's CE Primary School
Kingsway Park High School
Matthew Moss High School
St Cuthbert’s RC Business and Enterprise College

Pennines Township (17 schools)
All the schools on this list will be targeted with the RLWC 2021
Education Recourses
All 10 schools will be targeted with extra-curricular activity
January – February 3 schools over 7 weeks
February – Easter 3 schools over 7 weeks
Easter – May 2 schools over 7 weeks
May – July 2 schools over 7 weeks
Total 10 schools over 27 weeks

Name
Crossgates Primary School
Holy Trinity CE Primary School
Littleborough Community Primary School
Milnrow Parish CE Primary School
Moorhouse Primary School
Smithy Bridge Foundation Primary School
St James CE Primary School
St Mary's RC Primary School, Littleborough
Stansfield Hall CE Primary School
Hollingworth Academy
Newhey CP School
St Andrew's CE Primary School
St Thomas CE Primary School
Springfield School
Hamer Community School
Kentmere Academy
Alice Ingham RC Primary School

Page 22

Sharron Worrall
Townships Business Officer
Neighbourhood Services
Rochdale Borough Council
Floor 3, Number One Riverside
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU
Wednesday 30th October 2019
Dear Sharron
Re: Costs for Township Funding - TRY PROGRAMME
Further to our recent application I can confirm that the costs incurred by Rochdale Hornets
Sporting Foundation and Rochdale Hornets for the TRY Pogramme, will be as follows:



Equipment – balls and coaching
materials @ £1000.00 (divided x 4)
Free Match Tickets to Rochdale
Hornets x 150 children £5 per ticket
750.00, Hire of room at Rochdale
Hornets on match day 13 match
days x £20 per hour x 3 hours
780.00, 2 coaches x 3 hours x 13 @
£20.00 per hour 1560.00 (total
3090.00 divided /per 4 townships )
TOTAL

250.00
772.50

£1,022.50

Yours sincerely

Julie Durrant
Foundation Manager

Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation, Spotland Stadium, Willbutts Lane, ROCHDALE. OL11 5DR
Tel:
Email:
web: www.rochdalehornets.co.uk
Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation a registered charity 1159601

Page 23

QUOTE

BILL TO
Rochdale Hornets
Julie Durrant
Crown Oil Arena
Sandy Lane
Rochdale, OL11 5DR

Service
Design and Artwork
Marketing material for Rochdale Hornets Sporting
Foundation RLWC2021 and Junior Hornets
Programme –design and printing of leaflets, design
of social media adverts.

Estimate Number: 0001218
Estimate Date: October 25, 2019
Expires On: December 24, 2019
Grand Total (GBP): £950.00

Quantity
1

Page 24

Price

Amount

£950.00

£950.00

Total:

£950.00

Grand Total (GBP):

£950.00

Quotations for TOWNSHIP FUND – TRY PROGRAMME

Certificates and medals @ £5 per
child x 150 (£750.00 divided x 4)
Medals from amazon
Certificates from instaprint
Equipment – balls and coaching
materials @ £1000.00 (divided x
4)

https://www.amazon.co.uk/s?k=medals&ref=nb_sb_noss_2
https://www.instantprint.co.uk/businessstationery/certificates
https://www.ramrugby.co.uk/collections/rugby-trainingequipment

Balls
Cones
Tag Belts
Bibs
Agility Ladder
Crazy Catch wildchild

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

APPENDIX 4B

PF/19/19

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

QUOTE 1

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR

12th July 2019

Estimate for renovation to Gig House at Hare Hill Park, Littleborough.

F.A.O Ms Neela Jackson,
Estimate for renovation work to be undertaken at The Gig House at Hare Hill Park, Littleborough as
discussed during site visit is set out below:

Demolition Work

£6,400.00

Demolition and removal of masonry walls identified during site visit, as well as breaking up of
existing concrete ground slab (assumed to be 150mm thickness). Approximately 15.0m³ of concrete
floor and 6.0m³ of masonry to be demolished and removed from site. Access equipment and plant
provided by contractor.

Construction

£26,500.00

Construct 100mm concrete floor with power floated finish with A142 incorporated with minimum
40mm cover. Floor constructed on top of 100mm PIR insulation board on 1200 gauge visqueen on
well compacted sub base.
Line existing walls to a height of 2.400m, thus allowing for a clean, wipeable surface at work station
height as well as maintaining the aesthetic of the existing structure above. Wall construction to
consist of 50mm metal stud partition allowing a nominal cavity of 50mm between the rear of the
existing external wall and rear of proposed partition. 50mm PIR insulation board to be
accommodated in thickness of partition wall. 2.5/3mm plaster finish on 12.5mm plasterboard.
Divide existing boiler room to accommodate 2 number W.Cs.
Approximately 10.0m2 of repointing to stonework at low level to right hand corner/elevation to main
door. Repoint using 5:1:1 sand:lime:cement mortar with a struck finish.

Page 34

Install 5 new windows and entrance door plus cladding to existing openings, specification to be
confirmed.
Install fire escape door to rear elevation.
Install 100mm of PIR insulation board between existing rafters and undercloak with 25mm PIR
insulated 12.5mm plasterboard mechanically fixed to existing rafters. Plasterboard to be skim
finished. Existing roof trusses to be left exposed to remain sympathetic to the original structure.

Plumbing and Drainage

£4,400.00

Supply and install 2 number W.Cs and basins to existing boiler room. Provision for compact kitchen
area for tea and coffee making facilities, location to be confirmed. Works includes associated waste
and drainage to discharge into existing inspection chamber to rear elevation.

Electrics (provisional cost)

£4,500.00

Provisional cost to replace outdated consumer unit and rewire to clients specification.
Supply and install 5 number high level heating fans with a combined output of 10,000 watts.
Supply and install lighting array and ring main, specification to be confirmed.

Internal joinery

£3,800.00

Supply and install straight flight of stairs and handrail to mezzanine floor providing access to
proposed kiln.
Supply and install 4 number softwood door casings.
Supply and install approximately 30 linear metres of 144 x 22mm bullnosed MDF shelf to top of
proposed perimeter wall to primarily seal cavity as well as to allow provision to display art work
created by users of the facility.
Supply and install 44mm pencil round architrave to both sides of 4 number internal door casings.
Supply and install approximately 150 linear metres of 44mm pencil round skirting.
Supply and install 4 number internal doors and associated furniture, specification to be confirmed.

Page 35

Asbestos Removal (provisional cost)

£3,000.00

Surveyors reports indicates the presence of asbestos on site in various locations.

Total estimate for scope of works subject to confirmation of specifications
£48,600.00 inclusive of V.A.T

Yours Sincerely

Page 36

QUOTE 2

Ms Neela Jackson
Gig House
Hare Hill Park
Littleborough

Dear Ms Jackson
Quotation for renovation works to Gig House, Hare Hill Park, Littleborough as per meeting:
Demolition
£7200.00
Demolition and removal of masonry walls identified during site visit, as well as breaking up of existing
concrete ground slab (assumed to be 150mm thickness). Approximately 15.0m³ of concrete floor and
6.0m³ of masonry to be demolished and removed from site. Access equipment and plant provided by
contractor.
Construction
£29000.00
Construct 100mm concrete floor with power floated finish with A142 incorporated with minimum
40mm cover. Floor constructed on top of 100mm PIR insulation board on 1200 gauge visqueen on well
compacted sub base. Line existing walls to a height of 2.400m, thus allowing for a clean, wipeable
surface at work-station height as well as maintaining the aesthetic of the existing structure above. Wall
construction to consist of 50mm metal stud partition allowing a nominal cavity of 50mm between the
rear of the existing external wall and rear of proposed partition. 50mm PIR insulation board to be
accommodated in thickness of partition wall. 2.5/3mm plaster finish on 12.5mm plasterboard.
Divide existing boiler room to accommodate 2 number W.Cs. Approximately 10.0m2 of repointing to
stonework at low level to right hand corner/elevation to main door. Repoint using 5:1:1
sand:lime:cement mortar with a struck finish.
Install 5 new windows and entrance door plus cladding to existing openings, specification to be
confirmed. Install fire escape door to rear elevation.
Install 100mm of PIR insulation board between existing rafters and undercloak with 25mm PIR insulated
12.5mm plasterboard mechanically fixed to existing rafters. Plasterboard to be skim finished. Existing
roof trusses to be left exposed to remain sympathetic to the original structure.
Plumbing and Drainage
£6000.00
Supply and install 2 number W.Cs and basins to existing boiler room. Provision for compact kitchen area
for tea and coffee making facilities, location to be confirmed. Works includes associated waste and
drainage to discharge into existing inspection chamber to rear elevation.

Page 37

Ms Neela Jackson
Gig House
Hare Hill Park
Littleborough

Electrics (provisional cost)
£5500.00
Provisional cost to replace outdated consumer unit and rewire to clients specification.
Supply and install 5 number high level heating fans with a combined output of 10,000 watts.
Supply and install lighting array and ring main, specification to be confirmed.
Internal joinery
£4500.00
Supply and install straight flight of stairs and handrail to mezzanine floor providing access to proposed
kiln.
Supply and install 4 number softwood door casings.
Supply and install approximately 30 linear metres of 144 x 22mm bullnosed MDF shelf to top of
proposed perimeter wall to primarily seal cavity as well as to allow provision to display art work created
by users of the facility.
Supply and install 44mm pencil round architrave to both sides of 4 number internal door casings.
Supply and install approximately 150 linear metres of 44mm pencil round skirting.
Supply and install 4 number internal doors and associated furniture, specification to be confirmed.

Asbestos Removal (provisional cost)

£3,000.00

Surveyors reports indicates the presence of asbestos on site in various locations.
Total estimate for scope of works subject to confirmation of specifications

£55200 inc VAT

Page 38

Expression of Interest
The Gig House, Hare Hill Park, Littleborough

Neela Jackson
T/A The Star Tree Studio

Page 39
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Executive Summary

This document has been written as an expression of interest in the property The Gig House, Hare Hill
Park, Littleborough, which is currently available to let as a commercial opportunity.
The content will inform the reader of the proposed tenant, business and planned uses for the building.
It will demonstrate how the tenant and business will meet the requirements that Rochdale Council are
seeking as outlined in the Estates and Asset Management Gig House Particulars.
Information provided will focus on demonstrating how the proposed use would; benefit the
community, improve leisure and cultural facilities, offer activities that will complement and enhance
the park and existing facilities. All of which would be delivered by a tenant who is recognised locally as
community driven and reliable.

Page 40
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Proposed use, business and experience
This expression of interest is based on the proposal to bring The Gig House back to life and utilise it to its full
potential. The objective being to create a public studio space that provides fun, accessible art and craft
activities, classes, workshops for children and their parents or carers and adults.
The business making the proposal is The Star Tree Studio. The
Studio’s mission is to help nurture play, creativity and learning for
children and families within the local community. The Studio
differs from other local play areas such as traditional soft play
centres as the activities focus on discovery, inspiring imaginations,
active learning and doing.
The Studio’s activities provide a service and benefit to the local
community and residents of Littleborough and Rochdale; children,
young people, parents, carers, childminders, nurseries, schools,
the local authority, community groups and voluntary
organisations.
In addition, the Studio also attracts families into the area from
surrounding boroughs such as Oldham, Bury, Calderdale and
Manchester.
The Star Tree Studio is already a well-established business with an
excellent reputation within the local area. It first opened its doors
in March 2013 and currently operates from its original venue, a
small retail premises based in Littleborough centre.
“We now visit regularly for its cafes, grocery shopping, gift / card shops and annual events in Littleborough and in
Hare Hill Park. Art Stars has introduced us to a town we would otherwise have missed.”

The Star Tree Studio’s owner operator is Neela Jackson, a former Art and Design
Lecturer who has delivered quality art and craft experiences for children for over
seven years. Neela has a further seven years of further education teaching
experience as well as advice and guidance for young people. This background,
teaching skills and business experience make Neela a strong creative facilitator who
holds the credentials to take on a project of this nature and make it a success.
Neela is also an active well-known member of the local community. She has been a
volunteer member of Littleborough Events and Associations Forum for several years
and is a key committee member of the popular Littleborough Food and Drink Festival.
“Through Neela’s dedication, enthusiasm, inspiration and patience, I have had my eyes opened to the magic of art
and creativity and to the benefits it has in childhood education and well-being.”

The Star Tree Studio is often contracted to provide activities and
workshops for other organisations such as Rochdale Metropolitan
Borough Council, Link4Life Disability, Rochdale Carers Hub,
Littleborough Arts Festival, Littleborough Events and Associations
Forum, Friends of Hare Hill Park and many other local groups.
Working with such organisations and groups means the reach of
the Studio and its work goes beyond just children and families in
Littleborough but all ages, across the whole borough and beyond.

Page 41
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Vision and outline business plan
The Star Tree Studio is a unique venue that parents and
children can visit and enjoy high quality organised art and
craft experiences together. The Studio provides activities
many parents aspire to be able to do at home but due to
busy lives and work often don’t have the time to.
The Studio delivers a mix of fun educational classes that
can be pre-booked alongside ‘Pop In’ sessions where
families have the flexibility to be able to drop in both in
term time and school holidays.

In previous years Neela has been successful in
applying for Arts Council England funding.
The grant received enabled heavily subsidised
artist led workshops to be delivered for children
and young people during school holidays at a
minimal cost for parents. The Star Tree Studio was
an ideal venue at the time for the workshops. The
sessions were very popular with children and
parents alike who are keen to see similar provision
again in the future.

“I have also always been very impressed with the range of crafts available - it feels like there's always something new
for the kids to try - and think it offers great value for money too.”

A visit to the Studio is about broadening childhood experiences, experimenting,
trying something new and learning creative skills.
Many ‘stay at home’ and part time working parents like to visit with their children
regularly as well for classes or Pop In, to build routine into their day or week.
Activities such as the Baby Messy Play & Art Stars classes also support and enhance
Early Years learning.
The Studio is a social and interactive space where parents can meet and socialise,
and children can enjoy learning and playing together creatively.

“As my children have been at home with me - rather than in a nursery setting - I've also felt it's been a great place for
them to socialise and mix with other children; and it’s been a nice opportunity for me to connect with other mums.”

Page 42
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Details of additional benefits to the community and to the facilities in the park
The Star Tree Studio currently provides the local community with a
range of creative, leisure, cultural, social and wellbeing benefits and
will continue to do so on a greater scale should the opportunity to
occupy The Gig House be granted.
At present The Gig House is in a
poor state and in need of major
investment. Although occupied for
the part, it has unfortunately been
neglected over several years and
has become unattractive compared
to its surroundings.
The Star Tree Studio having long term occupancy of the building would
mean it is both aesthetically and practically improved.
It would also significantly extend and enhance the existing facilities
within Hare Hill Park and nearby, currently provided at the Library,
Hare Hill Bowling Club, Hare Hill House, Littleborough Cricket Club and
support events organised by Friends of Hare Hill Park, Littleborough
Events and Associations Forum.
Occupancy of The Gig House by an active family orientated business such as The Star Tree Studio could also
assist in reducing episodes of antisocial behaviour within Hare Hill Park. Incidents of antisocial behaviour
usually occur in areas that are underused by the rest of the community. A building that is clearly occupied,
frequented by members of the public and well maintained may help to reduce this type of behaviour in the
near vicinity, creating a friendlier and safer environment for all park users and residents.
Given the opportunity to expand and use The Gig House for its activities, the Studio will continue to provide
its current offer on a larger scale. It is also anticipated the space within will allow the creation of a specialist
sensory room for babies and children with additional needs to access. This provision is not available within
Littleborough at present for the public and such a facility would be highly valued by local families.
The Studio would work in partnership with other activity providers such as music, dance or drama to enable
the building to be used for all round creative provision. Additional ways the building could be utilised would
be in the evenings to be available to local Guiding and Scouting groups or to voluntary groups who need a
large meeting space.
All this will increase the benefits to the community by providing for a wider audience and complementing
existing leisure, cultural and sporting facilities. Consequently, the local borough and economy will benefit
through attracting people in to the area to access the Studio and it’s offer.

Page 43
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

The Star Tree Studio
provides and/ proposes;

Facilitates unique opportunities where
families and individuals from the
community are able enjoy fun and
educational creative play or art and
craft experiences together within a
local venue.

Benefits and Positive Outcomes
Through the activities The Star Tree Studio provides the community
will benefit from;
•

•

•
Provides a social and interactive space
where parents can meet, socialise and
children can play creatively

Offers activities aimed at ages;
0-5 years with a parent / carer.

•
•
•

5-11 years with a parent / carer.
11-16 years
16+ to Adult

•

Activities include;
No need to book pop in and play
sessions

•

Workshops
School Holiday Activities
•

Plans, organises and facilitates
educational creative activities for
children, young people and adults that
will have long lasting impact.

A place to visit regularly to socialise with others in a similar
situation. Many parents employed or stay at home like to get out
with their children, to build routine into their day / week, and in
turn avoid isolation or loneliness.
Opportunities for children, young people and families that
promote overall well-being by giving them quality time together,
encouraging them to visit and enjoy an activity they may not
usually make time for in their busy lives.
A gentle alternative to soft play centres and a place to visit to
occupy children in an educational and constructive way. The
increasing number of grandparents with childcare
responsibilities would be able to access activities with ease.
Family friendly creative and educational activities that can be
accessed by all regardless of their income
The flexibility to be able to ‘pop in and play’ and the opportunity
to attend structured and educational workshops for age groups
1-4, 5+ term time and in school holidays
Convenience and flexibility to attend anytime through the week.
This will appeal to working parents and those who cannot
commit to booking in advance due to budget, other
commitments etc.
School holiday workshops which will provide local families
focused and constructive activities to do together during the
school holidays when opportunities and funds can be limited,
especially for parents with more than one child, single parents
etc.
A venue that supports and extends upon local authority
children’s centres provision and provides the same benefits.
Research shows that there are many benefits for families who
regularly attend children’s centres: improved mental health and
wellbeing, better relations between parents and children,
enhanced home learning environments and more.
A supportive, creative, educational environment that facilitates
activities to boost parents’ and children’s confidence, develop
children’s play and social skills, aiming to meet a range of needs
and help all children fulfil their potential.
The activities and creative workshops organised also promote
participants well-being and have a long-term impact.
By providing opportunities to connect with others and encourage
creative learning in a non-formal setting, participants experience
the intellectual and emotional benefits of such activities and feel an
increase in confidence.
Subsequently they will hopefully be more open to these types of
activities throughout their life and recognise how accessing creative
activities can help improve their own mental health and well-being.

Page 44
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

An interactive family attraction that
not only serves its local community but
attracts visitors from outside the
Rochdale Borough.

By offering a unique provision and attracting people into the area to
access The Star Tree Studio’s services the local economy will see
benefits and prosper also.

Through expansion of services, will aim
to provide work experience, voluntary
and employment opportunities for
local unemployed people.

The growth and expansion aspired for, subject to the appropriate
premises, could create work opportunities for local people, such as
work experience for young people; voluntary work and
employment.

Nearby food outlets and independent retailers could see increases
in footfall and spending because of new visitors being attracted into
the area.

A specific target group for voluntary and employment will be
parents who have taken time out to look after children, have a gap
in their employment history, need to enhance their curriculum vitae
and require some support in returning to work.
Employment opportunities for local
artists and craftspeople will be
created.

Artists and craftspeople will benefit from gaining paid employment.
They will be employed to deliver specialist sessions and workshops
to members of the public, children, young people and adults.
Members of the public will benefit through exposure to the artist’s
work and tuition, discovering new ideas and having new
experiences.

To make ecological ‘green’ and ethical
changes or adaptations to the
premises.

Where appropriate reclaimed products/materials will be used for
refit of the premises, in keeping with the nature and age of the
building.

Operate in an ecologically friendly way
that will benefit the area.

Rainwater harvesting, utilising water butts to collect rain water to
reuse, with the option to share with the park warden or
Littleborough allotment users.
The Studio is already known for recycling unwanted items for crafts
with members of the public and businesses often donating paper,
craft products, egg cartons, card tubes, fabric and such which would
otherwise end up in landfill. Equally the Studio also passes on
surplus materials to local schools and nurseries also.

To support the natural environment
and wildlife within the area.
Build and strengthen links with other
organisations and projects and support
green initiatives.

Help to reduce social isolation and
promote emotional wellbeing.

Installing bat boxes or planting that will attract bees and birds,
deadwood log piles for insects and link with Park Gardeners and
Friends of Hare Hill Park on any initiatives the Studio can support.
Run workshops that integrate the park, wildlife or green themes.
Invite Forest School / Nature Education projects to use the Studio as
a venue to extend their provision.
Providing craft sessions for all adults, that are flexible, don’t require
booking / commitment – an open-door approach to encourage
people in to engage and access a positive environment.
To give local people the opportunities to explore and experience
creative activities and meet others.

Page 45
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Financial rental offer and proposed building plans based on the property being renovated by the tenant

To determine the work required to the property, guidance has been provided by trusted contractors
with considerable experience in barn conversions for residential use, as well as public sector,
commercial and heritage buildings.
At present, it is anticipated that a budget of approximately £60,000 minimum will be required to
renovate the premises. This would be to a suitable standard that meets building regulations and
makes it ‘fit for purpose’ for The Star Tree Studio to operate for members of the public to access
activities from.
The Star Tree Studio and Neela Jackson would raise the capital required and are willing to invest in the
renovation of The Gig House. In addition, extra funds will be required to fully equip the premises with
quality resources for the day to day operation of the Studio, this could amount to a further £10,000.
Taking into consideration the significant capital investment required, the proposal being made is for;
•

A secure ‘peppercorn’ style lease, i.e. £100 per annum for a period of fifteen years.

This takes in to account the likely timescale to secure funds, planning and renovate the property,
during which The Star Tree Studio will need to continue to operate from its existing premises.
The potential tenant would be willing to discuss terms and it is suggested should a lease be granted
that a planned review be arranged in year twelve, providing both parties with the opportunity to
discuss and mutually agree any extension or renewal terms.
Work undertaken will be sensitive in design to the Park surroundings and be respectful of the history
and heritage value of the property. Where possible such features will be retained and incorporated
sympathetically, in line with planning department advice and guidance. Links to local organisations
with an interest in the heritage value will also be established and fostered.
Access and egress to the site whilst renovation work is undertaken will avoid peak times in the Park
when there are high traffic volumes such as school pick up / drop off.
A further matter that has been considered once The Star Tree Studio is fully operational is traffic,
access and parking. Due to its central location customers, as they do presently, will be likely to park
vehicles in the centre, use public transport or walk. Alternatively, if travelling from outside the area,
the Studio will actively encourage customers to use the pay and display parking facilities at
Littleborough Cricket Club, which in turn supports the club financially.
Liaison with the Planning Department and more detailed information and plans regarding proposed
renovations, will be available should The Star Tree Studio be successful in acquiring the lease for The
Gig House.
To conclude, this outcome would be a significant mutually beneficial agreement for both parties.
Rochdale Borough Council would benefit by securing a reliable, long term custodian and tenant; a
professional who is prepared to invest in improving the building to a high-quality standard as well as
meeting the aims of the Council in terms of leisure, community, arts and culture.
In return, The Star Tree Studio, is enabled to grow and develop as a business through this opportunity;
gaining long term security, a much needed larger venue to operate and deliver its aims, whilst remaining
in the local area it is committed to enhancing.

Page 46
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Testimonials
“I first came across The Star Tree Studio a few months after it opened. I was looking for day time activities I could
take my then 9-month-old along to and I noticed that the Studio was offering a Baby Messy Play classes. I didn’t have
much idea about the Studio, the classes or anything else they had to offer but it was a new local business so I thought
we’d sign up and try it out. I wasn’t necessarily attending for the creative aspect of the classes, merely for the social
aspect ... this was my third baby and the other two had survived without such a class. Little did I know back then.
We attended Baby Messy Play weekly, progressing to Tiny Stars, then to Art Stars. Each week saw us both covered in
more glue, paint, gloop and glitter than you could imagine but I watched in amazement at the progress my little one
was making ... from a baby covered in cornflour gloop, to thinking she was in heaven sat in a tub of blue jelly, to a
toddler able to sit at a table long enough to produce a simple painting, to learning to cut with scissors so very
carefully, to a pre-schooler producing beautiful pieces of art independently ... all surrounded by a lovely bunch of
friends for both her and myself. I watched as her concentration improved, her motor skills improved and developed,
her social skills developed, and her individuality grew alongside her self confidence. We were both quite sad when the
time came to start school and my little one had ‘graduated’ from Art Stars classes.
The Star Tree Studio wasn’t around when my eldest two children were small and as they’re at school full time, they’re
unable to attend the weekly classes. However, the Studio offers our family so much more than just the weekly classes
for babies and pre-schoolers. We have attended several workshops which have been specifically put together for the
older children ... we’ve made t-shirts, sewn and stuffed little animals and learned basic sewing machine skills. We
also visit for the Pop In sessions where we’ve made all manner of art from painting to decoupage, Hama beads to
slime, ceramic painting to foam clay. And the grown ups aren’t forgotten either ... I myself have attended several of
the Ladies Evenings which have been put on by the Studio. A lovely, relaxed evening in the company of other local
ladies where we’ve made decoupage Christmas decorations, decoupage animals and been shown the techniques to
produce a beautiful ceramic painted piece.
We often see Star Tree Studio represented at local events too, each time sharing a craft to make and take home ...
Littleborough Food and Drink Festival, Rushbearing Festival, Littleborough Christmas Lights Switch on, Rochdale
Christmas Lights Switch on are just a few we’ve attended this last year. Each time the Studio stall is a hive of activity,
popular with young and old alike.
Five years ago when I first stumbled across The Star Tree Studio I had no idea how important it would become to our
family. Through Neela’s dedication, enthusiasm, inspiration and patience, I have had my eyes opened to the magic of
art and creativity and to the benefits it has in childhood education and well-being.”
Rebekah Gumbley

“The Star Tree Studio is so unique in a drenched sea of preschool classes. Firstly it is run by a skilled artist who not only
knows and is passionate about her subject but someone who understands how little children use all their senses to
access the world. She incorporates all this knowledge and understanding into every session she delivers.
I live in Saddleworth and have been visiting the studio weekly for about 5 years since my middle child was 2 years old.
There is simply no other provision available that covers the same learning experiences for young children which is why
I’m very happy to travel such a distance to the Star Tree.
My youngest child starts school in September so sadly our preschool class days have finished but both my children
who attended the classes still regularly visit during school holidays to ‘get crafty’
Neela acknowledges that children should learn at their own speed and explore their own interests which is why as a
parent these sessions are so valuable as there is no pressure to achieve a ‘matching end product’ it’s all about the
process and embedding a love of creativity rather than success or failure.
I could see this philosophy being very successful with adult SEN and elderly groups if the environment has appropriate
accessibility.
Both my children and I have very fond memories of the different classes we attended and the creative skills they can
now employ into their school settings. We will continue to be loyal customers for years to come.”
Julie Warren

Page 47
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

“I have been visiting Star Tree Studio on a weekly basis - with various combinations of my 3 children - ever since the
incredible Neela first opened it; and feel so lucky to have such a wonderful resource locally.
All of my children have benefited hugely from their experiences at their Art Stars classes. My eldest son learned the
'art of calm', while getting to grips with art and I felt the classes really helped prepare him for the focus and
concentration required at school.
Meanwhile, I have no doubt that her time at Star Tree really helped my daughter, who has Down's syndrome, develop
her fine motor skills and her concentration span. It has also fostered a love of drawing, colouring and creating - she is
rarely without a pen and paper. My youngest son, who is not an easy to please chap, has recently declared that he
'loves' Star Tree and can't wait to return in September. This is praise indeed!
I have also always been very impressed with the range of crafts available - it feels like there's always something new
for the kids to try - and think it offers great value for money too.
The parties we've attended and hosted at Star Tree have been excellent.
As my children have been at home with me - rather than in a nursery setting - I've also felt it's been a great place for
them to socialise and mix with other children; and its been a nice opportunity for me to connect with other mums Neela always makes everyone feel very at home and welcome.
Finally, it's hard not to notice just how much the Star Tree has become an important part of the community - either
with a presence at events or supporting charities with a raffle prize or two.
I cannot recommend this place highly enough!”
Emma Lambert

“Despite not being Littleborough residents (we live in Ripponden) our children have enjoyed weekly Art Stars classes at
the Star Tree Studio since 2016. In that time we have found the classes to be a weekly highlight and an important
part of their development and preparation for school, teaching not only art skills but structure and routine. Classes are
educational, fun and (importantly) value for money.
The classes cover key elements of the Early Years foundation stage, always using themes to which children could
relate (such as space, dinosaurs, animals, shapes, Christmas, Easter, fireworks etc.) and we have seen our children
develop, both creatively and in overall maturity.
In addition to the weekly classes we have also taken part in the ever widening range of other activities; sand art,
ceramic painting, slime making, birthday parties and of course Father Christmas in December. All of that is for the
children but it's also welcome that Star Tree has now introduced drop in sessions for adults as well as evening
ceramics sessions.
These are all activities which we are unlikely to have done ourselves at home and we’re grateful for the opportunity to
do them. But it’s also worth noting how we now regularly visit Littleborough as a result of these classes. We lived in
Ripponden for 10 years before starting at Art Stars and had only previously driven through Littleborough. We now visit
regularly for its cafes, grocery shopping, gift / card shops and annual events in Littleborough and in Harehill Park. Art
Stars has introduced us to a town we would otherwise have missed.
Neela Jackson clearly knows and enjoys her work and this is always transmitted to her customers through her passion
and interest. It is a business which deserves every opportunity to thrive and grow, bringing something unique to the
area which is both educational and attracts visitors like us to the town. Although our children will shortly start school
we will still continue to enjoy Littleborough and of course everything the Studio has to offer at weekends.
The Star Tree studio is a real gem and an asset to Littleborough.”
Nicola and Martin Parker

Page 48
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

“Our 5-year-old daughter, Emily, has been coming to The Star Tree Studio since she was 18 months old, and attended
Art Stars classes until she started school.
As a stay-at-home dad I often found it hard to find groups to attend with Emily that were as friendly and as
welcoming as Art Stars is. The classes are really well structured and themed to fit with the changing seasons. They are
fun for children and parents alike and the atmosphere is really relaxed with children being able to move as quickly or
as slowly as they want through the activities.
The activities Emily has taken part in at The Star Tree Studio have helped with her school work too. In her report at
the end of last year, she was "exceeding" in creative areas against where she was expected to be for her age group
and I am sure that it has helped with being able to concentrate as well.
My wife has also attended an adult’s ceramic night, which was a great opportunity to forget about work, meet new
people and create a ceramic garden ornament.
Now she is at school, we regularly pop in for Emily to get creative and try new things. At community events such as
Rushbearing, the Littleborough Food Festival and Littleborough Arts Festival, The Star Tree Studio activity is always
Emily's first stop.”
Ben Judge

Page 49
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Referees

Simon France, Secretary of LEAF, Littleborough Food Festival Event Manager & Littleborough Local
“I think Neela is the perfect person to be given the opportunity to expand within Littleborough.
Ever since she started her own business I have always known her to work with a community focus. She often ties the
activities in her studio with events happening in the area. Examples include making poppies for the Poppy Picnic, mini
wreaths for the Rushbearing Festival and flags for the Food Festival. This helps to make people feel more involved in
the community.
She also gets involved in the events themselves and provides activities on the event day as well as contributing
massively to the organisation of the events. Put simply, there would not be a Food Festival in Littleborough without
Neela.
She also understands the benefits that art and craft activities can have on wellbeing and regularly offers sessions for
adults in the evening.
She is the most selfless business owner I know and anything she does will be of great benefit to the community of
Littleborough.”

Councillor Ann Stott, JP, Conservative Member – Littleborough Lakeside.
“It gives me great pleasure to support Neela in her expression of interest in Gig House with a view to expanding her
current business, The Star Tree Studio.
I have known Neela for a number of years, and have always found her to be sociable, polite, helpful, and enthusiastic in
all she undertakes. Her current well-established business serves the community of Littleborough in all age groups
throughout the year as well as providing special holiday time activities – this ongoing success shows Neela has
excellent business acumen which is put to good use and is aimed for the benefit of residents.
In addition to her business interests, Neela is an active volunteer in the community, assisting with the staging of
community events such as Littleborough Food and Drink Festival, Rushbearing Weekend, Christmas Lights Event, as
well as assisting Hare Hill Park with the Friends activities. All this involvement takes up hours of free time, all given
freely by Neela.
The objective behind the let of Gig House would give Neela extra space to expand the Studio work and would be on
hand in the vicinity of the Park to enable Park users to take close hand advantage of her extended facilities.
Neela is an upstanding, reliable and hardworking member of the community, and the let of Gig House to her would not
only benefit herself, but, also the community and the Authority in making good use of surplus vacant premises.”

Page 50
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Page 51
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

Page 52
Copyright © 2018 Neela Jackson T/A The Star Tree Studio All Rights Reserved

APPENDIX C

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PTCF/01/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2020

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

Littleborough Food & Drink Sub Committee

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
The Littleborough Food Festival Sub Committee was formed after a trial event held in June 2015.
The Food Festival was so popular that a larger scale event was organised in 2016 and the decision to make it an
annual event led to the 2017 festival. Following the growth and success again the Sub Committee are now seeking to
organise Littleborough Food & Drink Festival’s sixth event on Saturday 13th June 2020.
The Food Festival Committee is made up of group of local business representatives that have joined together from
the Pennines Business & Tourism Forum to voluntarily plan and organise this exciting event. They are also well
supported by Littleborough Events and Associations Forum in terms of organisation and event volunteers.
The aim of Littleborough Food Festival is to support and promote business in Littleborough by encouraging local
shops, cafes, restaurants and pubs to participate in a community event together to attract visitors into Littleborough.
We aim to celebrate the quality chefs, restaurants and local food and drink producers that exist in Littleborough and
surrounding nearby areas, providing them with an opportunity to showcase their products to a wider audience

d) Contact name
e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode

Neela Jackson
– Neela Jackson, in ref. to grant application
c/o The Star Tree Studio
42 Victoria Street
Littleborough
OL15 9DB

g) Email address

hello@littleboroughfoodfestival.co.uk /

h) Web address

www.littleboroughfoodfestival.co.uk

Page 53

Form PT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2016
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2017
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2018
Littleborough Food & Drink Festival 2019
c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?
Yes

No

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
Littleborough Food Festival aims to help put Littleborough on the map as a desirable tourist and shopping
destination by attracting people to attend an appealing family friendly event and in turn they will explore what
the area has to offer in terms of cafes, restaurants, shops etc.
The Festival will take place on Saturday 13th June 2020, 11am until 4pm. The venue will be a mix of outdoor stalls
and indoor shop / community premises. We will celebrate food & drink, creating food market with a great
atmosphere built upon with quality musical entertainment throughout the day.
Hare Hill Road & Victoria Street will be the designated event area. There will be a mobile kitchen to host local
chef’s cooking demonstrations, seating for the public watching the demonstrations. There will be a professional
event stage for musical entertainment, seating and standing area. Approximately 24 food and drink stalls will be
situated on the streets. A designated children’s zone will accommodate face painters, balloon modellers, bubbles
and interactive games for children and of course the popular children’s cookery classes provided by Littleborough
Deli will also run throughout the day.
The festival attracts unprecedented large numbers of people to Littleborough and the individual businesses
taking part and we have found despite unpredictable weather the atmosphere is always buzzing, the stalls and
individual shops see large numbers of visitors, often ‘selling out’ and the feedback from the public on the whole
positive.
Several shops report the event itself results in an immediate increase in footfall and trade on the day, especially
the ones who put in the extra effort to get involved and provide an attractive food or shopping offer. Feedback
from shop owners tells us it also brings repeat business to local shops after the event, for example customers
discovering shops they didn’t know about – the ‘food festival’ effect.
The event attracts a great deal of publicity in the local press in the months leading up to it and afterwards. All this
helps to bring people into Littleborough and promotes the area as a desirable place to visit and in turn the local
restaurants and shops benefit hugely.
The festival aims to bring together local businesses and the community. It is anticipated that we will build upon the
positivity and good reputation we have established so far and continue to highlight Littleborough as a successful
shopping and tourist destination within the Rochdale Borough, not only for local people but for visitors across the
North West and beyond.
Project start date

1st February 2020

Project completion

Page date
54

13th June 2020
Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£7680.00

b) Amount of grant required

£2669.60

c) Amount from other sources

£5010.40

d) Details of other funding
Funder

What they may fund

Dates of funding decisions

Grantscape
– Crook Hill Community Fund

Marquees, Generators x 2 & Fuel,
Table & Chair Hire,

May 2020

Local Food Businesses
– advertisement fees

Leaflets x 5000

30th January 2020

Food / Drink Vendors – stall fees

Mobile Stage

1st March 2020

Local Business Sponsorship
– Graham Poole Haulage

Road Closure legal fees & traffic
management fees

November 2019

Littleborough Food Festival

Insurance, PA, Zumba,
Graphic Design, Website,
Marketing & Publicity Materials,
Bubble Artist

1st March 2020

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

Cooking Demonstration Kitchen –supply, erect and supervision

£1389.60

Band 1
Band 2
Band 3

£500.00
£150.00
£150.00

Face Painters x 2, Balloon Modeller x 1

£480.00

Page 55

TOTAL

£2669.60
Form PT03

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
.volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Pennines Township in all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

Neela Jackson

Full name

Julie Pimlott

Position

Sub-Committee Member

Position

Treasurer

Date

12th November 2019

Date

12th November 2019

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
• answered all the relevant questions and
• enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Pennines Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 922227
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 56

Form PT03

Estimate Event Kitchen
Hire - Littleborough Food &
Drink Festival 2019
12 February 2019

£1,389.60
Littleborough Food Festival

Quantity

Details

Product

Event kitchen hire to include 4 ring induction hob,
electric oven with grill, under counter fridge, a
selection of chefs equipment, PA system and
overhead TV monitor.

66 Expenses

Delivery and collection @ 0.50 pence per mile
(return journey 66 miles)

Unit Price (£)

VAT

Net Subtotal (£)

1,125.00

20%

1,125.00

0.50

20%

33.00

Net Total

1,158.00

VAT

231.60

GBP Total

£1,389.60

Other Information

To supply mobile demonstration kitchen, 4 ring induction hob, fan oven with grill, full PA system,
overhead TV monitor, undercounter fridge with small ice box, small double sink unit to include hand wash
and a selection of chefs equipment.
Event Date - Saturday 8 June 2019.
Delivery Date - Saturday 8 June 2019.
25% deposit due on confirmation of hire £347.40.
Balance due on delivery Saturday 8 June 2019 £1042.20.

Page 57
1/1

Page 58

Page 59

INVOICE
Address:

Email:

DATE: 27/11/19

Tel. No:

INVOICE No: 4

Bill To:

For :

Band Show

Littleborough Food Festival 2020

DESCRIPTION

Number of
Days

Band Show

1

Please make Cheques payable to
Bank Details:
Account Name:

Page 60

RATE

£600
TOTAL

AMOUNT

£600
£600

Contact:
Extension:
Email:

Littleborough Food & Drink Festival

Your Ref:
Our Ref:
Date:

28th November 2019

Dear Neela,
Re: 2020 Littleborough Food & Drink Festival
Thank you for your enquiry regarding the availability of
Food & Drink Festival on Saturday 13th June 2020.

to attend the Littleborough

We would be delighted to perform at the event again and I can confirm that our fee would be £150.
If you would like to book the band or you require any further information please do not hesitate to
contact me.
Yours sincerely,

Page 61

INVOICE
FAO - LEAF Committee

For services as vocal coach/choir leader – 13th June 2020
Littleborough Food Festival on the stage
Choir
Costs and expenses as agreed by LEAF committee
Total Fee: £150 inclusive

Please make cheques payable to
Payment within 7 days would be greatly appreciated
For BACS transfer please pay to:

Please use this invoice number as reference
I confirm that I am self-employed, and therefore personally fully responsible for
my own income tax and National Insurance contributions.

Page 62

Bill To

Estimate EST0001

Littleborough Food Festival

Date

29/11/2019

DESCRIPTION

QTY

RATE

AMOUNT

Face painting

2

£150.00

£300.00

£200.00

£200.00

Balloon modelling
Payment instructions

Total

£500.00

Bank transfer

Page 63

Thanks for your business!

APPENDIX 4D

PENNINES TOWNSHIP FUND 2019/20
APPLICATION FORM

REF
PTC/13/19

Please read the Terms & Conditions and Guidance for Applicants. If you need advice or support to
complete your application form, please contact Pennines Township Office.
SECTION 1 – NAME OF PROJECT
Name of project

Project 2020

SECTION 2 - APPLICANT DETAILS
a) Name of organisation

The Parochial Church Council of the Ecclesiastical Parish of Holy Trinity
Littleborough (Charity No. 1179711)

b) Type of organisation
Voluntary/
community

Registered
charity

Sports/
leisure club

Limited
company

Private
company

Social
enterprise

Other
type

c) Aims and objectives of your organisation and activities or services it provides
Holy Trinity is the Church of England Parish Church serving Littleborough spiritually, whilst also working
alongside the community to improve their lives through being involved in the social activities of the area.

d) Contact name

The Reverend Ian Bullock

e) Contact telephone
f) Contact address and
postcode
g) Email address
h) Web address

www.cofe-littleborough.co.uk

Page 64
Form PT03

SECTION 3 – ORGANISATION FINANCES
a) Have you applied for or received a Township grant before?

Yes

No

Yes

No

b) If you have answered yes to question a), please give details below

c) Does more than 50% of your annual base budget/income come
from Rochdale Council?

If yes, detail below the amounts received and Council Services providing budget/income to your
organisation (a copy of your application will be forwarded to your relevant Link Officer for their comments)

SECTION 4 – ABOUT THE PROJECT AND JUSTIFICATION
Details of the proposed project and what benefits will this project bring for participants,
organisation, group or wider community?
As the parish church we are embedded in our community, seeking to serve those who we live with. Due to the current
limitations on our building we are heavily restricted as to the services (outside of faith-based support) that we can
provide. Our Project 2020 is an exciting far reaching initiative, which will address these issues.
We want to be able to open the church up to the wider public, Holy Trinity is by far the largest indoor space in the
area, and through our community project we intend to open up the building through a radical re-order to allow for
much greater use by the community. For the past two years we have been consulting with the local community and
taken our time over devising a plan which will meet the needs of most, if not all user groups.
The main changes to the building will be:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The installation of new up-to-date under-floor heating system.
New levelled stone floors throughout the area.
A full re-wire of the building, incorporating new lighting systems
(These two alone will reduce our carbon footprint by approximately 60%).
A new one level multi-function worship area which will include the removal of pews, and addition of chairs to
give the space greater flexibility.
A new purpose built kitchen and servery area.
An up-to-date sound system (to enable us to comply with current legislation).
New Audio \ Visual equipment.
Replacing our one toilet with three (which will include on with disabled access)
Multi-purpose configurable space.
Creating Disabled Access to the building.
Making safe of all fire escapes from the building.

As the project has many facets, we perceive a number of positive differences which the successful completion will
offer:

Page 65

Form PT03

1. A facility which can be hired at a reasonable price to give our community access to events \ groups which are
currently not possible to hold within the locality.
2. Organisations that have long since moved out of the area due to not having a suitable venue, being able to
re-establish a base (e.g. the national blood service)
3. Enable the church to support small groups who have lost their regular meeting place, and do not have the funds to
move to a public venue (e.g. Uniformed organisations \ The Royal British Legion)
4. It will allow the church to significantly improve its Green credentials with a large decrease to our carbon footprint.
Additionally, this project is by far the biggest outreach to the local community that has been undertaken in the parish
for a good number of years. Littleborough is ranked at 2886 in the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), 15% of the
children, 12% working age and 17% of pensioners in the parish live in poverty, we rate at 20.4 on the IMD, which
includes 23.8 on Education skills and training, 11.3 Barriers to housing and services, and 41.8 in living environment. In
addition, 10% of the population is out of work, and 30% are lone parent households.
The fulfilment of this project would give the people of the area a chance to grow in all manner of ways. This is the
most important criteria which the church will judge if the project is successful.
We have gained a great deal of support from others, and we have attached the letters of support that we have
received, which include a number of significant organisations within the area.
Your contribution would be used to help us to realise this vision for the future, by helping us with one of the key
elements to the project, the new floor, which underpins the vast majority of the structural work which will enable us
to use the space for community use.

With this application we have also attached copies of the current \ proposed plans for the building, as well a much
more in-depth document detailing in great detail all that we are striving to do. I believe that the next meeting is in
October, and you often ask petitioners to attend the meeting. Sadly I am away on annual leave, and am not able to
attend, however, if you wish to visit the church so that we can talk through any questions you have, and to enable me
to walk you through everything we are doing, I would be very happy to do this.
Project start date

January 2020

Project completion
date

August 2020

Page 66
Form PT03

SECTION 5 – PROJECT FINANCES
a) Cost of project

£422,000

b) Amount of grant required

£ 20,000

c) Amount from other sources

£ 402,000

d) Details of other funding
Funder
Church Fundraising
Beatrice Laing Trust

What they may fund
N\A
Open Donation

Dates of funding decisions
£75,000 already in place
£5,000 Secured

Leeds Building Society
Peter Kershaw Trust
Douager Countess Eleanor Peel
Adint Charitable Trust
Hobson Charity Limited
Souter Charitable Trust
Sainsburys Family Trust
The Duchy of Lancaster
The Gibbs Trust
Stoller Charitable Trust
The Anchor Foundation
Andor Charitable Trust
Blyth Watson Charitable Trust
Boltons Charity
Clara E Burgess Charity
Clore Duffield Foundation
Cuthbert Horn Trust
De Byre Charitable Trust
Djanogly Foundation
Fitton Trust
Jenour Foundation
Hodge Foundation
Joseph Strong Fraser Trust
Lord Barnaby's Charitable Foundation
P F Charitable Trust
The Percy Bilton Charity
Rest-Harrow Trust
Russell Trust
Ruth and Stuart Lipton Charitable Trust
St Jude's Trust
The Astor Foundation
The Hedley Denton Charitable Trust
Persimmon
Ford

These are all open requests
for a general contribution
towards the project.

Unless stated these bodies do
not have specified dates and
consider on an ad-hoc basis

September 2019

October 2019

November 2019
October 2019

Page 67
Form PT03

e) Breakdown of proposed expenditure relating to the amount of grant required (Enclose
quotations, cost estimates or extracts from catalogues. At least two quotations will be required
for any items to be funded that will cost £1,000 or more to demonstrate value for money. Costs
for items to include VAT only if your organisation cannot claim VAT back from HM Revenue and
Customs).
Expenditure item

Cost

New Floor (Estimated Costs taken from our Quantity Surveyors Report)
• Take out and remove from site the whole of the existing suspended
timber ground floor including removing floorboarding and timber joists
• Pull down and remove from site all existing sleeper walls which support
the existing suspended timber ground floor.
• New sleeper walls comprising 215mm thick dense concrete blocks on
new concrete foundations.
• New ground floor being precast concrete beam and block floor
spanning across the new sleeper walls.
• 75mm Thick cement and sand floor screed (to contain underfloor
heating pipes) laid on a 500 gauge Visqueen damp proof membrane
laid on 150mm thick insulation board.
• New flooring to Tower Porch, Narthex, Nave and Memorial Chapel
being 35mm thick natural sandstone pavings laid on cement and sand
floor screed.
• Fix existing mosaic tiles removed from the chancel in the new Baptistry.
(Full QS Report Available if req’d)

TOTAL

2,700

6,000
17,200
15,000

14,000

22,600
250
77,750

SECTION 6 – SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Please supply the following documents when you submit your application. IF YOU DO NOT SUPPLY
THESE DOCUMENTS, WE WILL NOT BE ABLE TO PROCESS YOUR APPLICATION. Please tick the
boxes to confirm which documents you have attached to this application.
a) Annual accounts and bank statement(s)
b) Constitution/governing document
X
c) If your project works with children and young people under 18 years old or vulnerable adults, please
confirm your organisation has the following in place:
Child protection policies and procedures
Yes
N/A
Disclosure & Barring Service (DBS) checked staff and
Yes
N/A
.volunteers
d) Quotes/estimates/extracts from catalogues for proposed
expenditure

SECTION 7 - DECLARATION
We, the undersigned agree to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Abide by Pennines Township Funds Terms and Conditions.
No expenditure being incurred on this project prior to the grant decision being given.
Certify that the information contained in this application is correct and that we are authorised
by the organisation to accept these conditions on their behalf.
Use funds, if granted, only as specified in this application, unless receiving authorisation from
Pennines Township Office to make changes.
Send the invoices/receipts for all payments made with this grant along with the completed
Project Evaluation Form to the Pennines Township Office.
Agree to participate in monitoring, auditing and evaluation related to this fund.
Highlight the support of Pennines Township
all publicity material and agree to Rochdale
Pagein 68
Council’s use of the organisation’s name and photographs for promotional purposes.
Form PT03

•

Inform Pennines Township Office immediately if either signatory leaves the organisation or
can no longer fulfil their responsibilities, or someone else takes over responsibility for the
grant on behalf of the organisation.
Organisation Chair or Treasurer
Contact Person
(Different from Contact Person)

Signature

Signature

Full name

The Rev’d Ian Bullock

Full name

Mr Frank Kershaw

Position

Vicar \ Chair

Position

Churchwarden

Date

30th August 2019

Date

30th August 2019

Before you send your application to us, please check that you have:
• answered all the relevant questions and
• enclosed all the information requested:
- Annual accounts
- Constitution/governing document
- Bank statement(s)
- Quotations/cost estimates/extracts from catalogues
- BACS form
We will return incomplete application forms.
Please send your completed application form to:
Pennines Township Office, c/o Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale OL16 1XU
Tel: 01706 922227
Email: pennines.township@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 69
Form PT03

Holy Trinity, Littleborough
Project 2020
INTRODUCTION
Our Church
The current Holy Trinity was consecrated on 2nd August 1820, this being the third church to
sit on the site since 1471. In 1889 the chancel was added to the church, and was designed
to mirror the style of Architecture that was in use at the time of the building of the original
church in 1471.
As well as having an inlaid mosaic floor of Minton which represents symbols based on the
Trinity, it also boasts 36 carved angels in the roof, an oak carved choir, and a large array of
stained glass on the North and South Chancel by Clayton & Bell of London, culminating in
an impressive East Window by Hardman & Co, Birmingham, which features in the centre
the Crucifixion and above Ascension.
Today Littleborough, which sits in the foothills of the Lancashire side of the Pennines, has a
total population of 13,500 and is a predominately (96%) white British community. Although
it is classed as a town, Littleborough still retains that ‘village feel’ which retains some ancient
traditions, and will rally together in times of need (e.g. the Boxing Day floods in 2015).
Within the area are two additional Parish churches, St Barnabas, Shore and St James,
Calderbrook, and together the three parishes are collectively known as The Benefice of
Littleborough, whilst also retaining their own distinct legal status, under the direction of The
Vicar of Littleborough.

Location
Holy Trinity Church is by far the biggest location within the area, it is situated in the heart
of Littleborough and close to both the local railway station and bus terminus. It is the first
building that you see as you head down from the Pennines, and Hollingworth Lake, and the
area is generally described as a hidden Gem within the Diocese of Manchester.
During the summer, Littleborough is a popular place for tourism, both on road, and water,
as the Leeds – Liverpool canal runs right through, and canal boats will often moor up in the
area. The A58, one of the main routes into Yorkshire passes through the middle of the
town, both over Blackstone Edge, and also up through Todmorden into Hebden Bridge and
beyond, as well as offering links into Rochdale through to Bury and Manchester.
Additionally, Hollingworth Lake, which sits within the parish is alive with activity throughout
the year, and is less than a mile from the centre of Littleborough.

Current Activities
In addition to weekly services, Holy Trinity is incredibly proud of our Youth Theatre
Workshop, which was created 8 years ago, initially to help with fundraising, but quickly took
on a life of its own. The workshop is open to any young person ages 9 -19, and operates

Page 70

Page 1 of 13

through term time. Each year the Workshop puts on two shows, a summer spectacular,
which showcases the talents of our young people in a variety of art forms, e.g. acting,
singing, musical instruments and performance dance, based on a theme.
These have included songs from the musicals, music from the reign of The Queen, and this
year songs from the movies. Then in October each year, they put on a full production
which runs for 4 performances, when we transform the church into a theatre, and over the
course of the show over 400 people will come to enjoy from Littleborough and beyond.
Additionally, in 2018 Holy Trinity was granted permission to become an Arts Award
Centre, which means that the work our young people do, can be accredited to recognised
awards.
In addition to the theatre the church has been working hard to re-build its crucial links with
our community, and currently one Saturday each month, we open the church, and host
events, which range from Bacon Butty mornings, cream tea events, Summer and Christmas
Fayres, and soup mornings, to mention a few.
This allows the community access to the church which a few years ago was not available,
and we are enjoying being able to share time with members of our community, as they
come in to explore the church.
We are also involved in other events which are aimed at engaging with members of our
local community, below are some which have included:
Band Concerts
Art Exhibitions
Taking part in the annual Littleborough Food Festival
Rekindling the churches involvement with Littleborough Rushbearing (one of only
four left in the country)
Working closely with our Local Church School, hosting their annual services, and
providing space for their concerts
Working closely with L.E.A.F. (Littleborough Events and Association Forum) who are
the biggest community event organisers in Littleborough
The church is also committed to supporting other organisations whose aims are to help
those in need, e.g. We have a box for food donations for the local foodbank, and each year
at harvest, we join with our sister parishes, and two church schools, to have a large
collection of food to send to them (Last year we filled two vans through the generosity of
the congregations and the schools).
We also support the following:
The Leprosy Mission, who we are also trading partners with.
Open Doors.
The Salvation Army
The Children’s Society through our annual Christingle service collection.
This is in addition to other one-off collections that we take through the year, which
in the past have included:
The Alzheimer’s Society.
Crohns and Colitis UK.
The Joshua Wilson Brain Tumour Charity.
Springhill Hospice.

Page 71

Page 2 of 13

PROJECT
Update of heating and opening up of worship area.
The current heating system we have in church is well over 100 years old, (This being large
pipes that run around the balcony, and through covered gullies in the floor, and although the
church fundraised to install a new boiler 8 years ago, the piping within the church is now at
the end of its life. (The warmest that we can achieve in church during autumn \ winter is at
best 14 degrees).
The church recognises that as we move forward, it is now time to overhaul the entire
system, and install an underfloor solution which can make use of the currently overworked
boiler, and supplement this with perimeter heating for the especially cold times, which are
often with our location.
Additionally, moving down this route allows us to remove the biggest obstacle that we have
from fully serving our community, which are the pews. This in turn allows us to remove the
pew staging which prevents any realistic access for those who have a disability which would
prevent them from coming into the church.
We are also looking to change the access to the church from the street, as this is currently
by two uneven steps, and so to ensure there are no obstacles, we intend to create a
graduated lowering of the footpath to street level, and follow this through to the church
door.
We have spent a considerable amount of time planning this project and through the past
experiences of our Vicar who has re-ordered a church for community use, have listened
carefully to the community and the congregation to ensure that we can provide a solution
which will allow for the greatest amount of access to as many people as possible.
In 2018 after spending a great deal of time with our architect we presented the plan in its
entirety to the congregation and fielded questions from them about what we were planning,
and so that the P.C.C. were fully informed before moving to a formal vote to proceed, the
question was posed to the congregation as to whether they were supportive of the plan,
and we were pleased to receive 100% backing for the plans, which then gave the P.C.C. a
clear mandate to proceed with the project.
In addition to this work, we have also been working with the local community, and have
identified a number of potential users once the work has been completed, some have
approached us, and there are others who we will be approaching once the project is fully
underway, these include:
*L.E.A.F.
*U3A
*Holy Trinity School
Local Band
*Local Clog Dancing Group
*Uniformed Organisations (who have previously left the area)
*Local Ladies groups
*Partnering with Near Neighbours to provide services for the elderly
Friends of Hare Hill Park
* = Denotes where initial discussions have already taken place

Page 72

Page 3 of 13

We also have written support from the three Patrons of our Church:
The Bishop of Manchester
The Dean and Chapter of Manchester Cathedral
The Vicar of Rochdale
62 members of our community have signed a petition of support and we have also received
letters of support from:
L.E.A.F.
Friends of Hare Hill Park
The Church of England School of the Resurrection
Holy Trinity Church of England School
Rochdale Stitchers Group
Councillor Ann Stott
Oakenhoof
Littleborough Lions
The church has also considered some of the other ways in which we can serve our
community more effectively, and some of the ideas that are already in discussion are:
A Monthly Artisan Market
Coffee Mornings
Conference \ Reception Venue
Taking part in Heritage Days \ Events
Annual Christmas Tree Festival
Wedding Exhibitions
Developing our Art Exhibition into bigger events
Choral \ Culture Evenings

Project Scope
So far, we have detailed two of the main aspects of the plan, and enclosed with this
document are the architect’s drawings and the following breaks down the full schedule of
work which will be undertaken in the project:
1. Removal of all the old heating system, pipes \ iron works, and being replaced by a
new under floor heating system.
2. Removal of all pews in the Nave, many of these will be re-utilised in the new west
balcony, the rest will be sold, and the proceeds will be added to the project funds.
3. Removal of the North and South balconies, and the remedial repair and restructure
of the west balcony. The current seating will be removed and sold.
4. Removal of all floors in the nave and west porch, vestry and kitchen, which will be
replaced by one level floor in a stone tile.
5. Removal of old single toilet on the North West corner of the church, and replaced
with three new toilets on the South West corner, one of these being built to
disabled standard.
6. Enabling Disabled access to the church from street level into the entire nave of the
church.
7. The installation of a new floor to ceiling cupboard to store the church’s removable
stage.
8. The installation of a fully fitted kitchen which will suit the needs of the church and
community more effectively.

Page 73

Page 4 of 13

9. Removal of old rotting windows and installation of new Double-Glazed windows
throughout to ensure maximum heat retention.
10. New Blinds to be installed on all windows to allow for the church to be darkened
for community events when required.
11. Re-wire of all electrics in church, which will also include the installation of a new
lighting system. (this will also include looking at the lighting outside the building to
ensure greater visibility in the dark).
12. Installing multimedia devices in church which can be used by the church or
community for a variety of events, and adding network connectivity so that these
resources can be utilised.
13. Re-purpose of the sound system, to enable full use of it in the church’s new
configuration, and to ensure that we continue to comply with current legislation.
14. Installation of chairs (design yet to be decided) in the nave.
15. Old uneven stairs removed, and replaced with new to enable easy access to the
Balcony seating.
16. Installation of a removable glass screen which will allow for the nave to be
partitioned to create a Narthex room, when a user group does not need to utilise
the full building, whilst also allowing for the ability to use the entire Nave without
impediment.
17. Replacement of the current Church Noticeboard (at the South West of the
Graveyard), and the installation of a second noticeboard (at the South East of the
Graveyard) to raise the visibility of the building.
18. Installation of a new permanent electronic noticeboard inside the porch to give
greater flexibility in advertising what’s happening inside the church and within the
local community.
19. Installation of new Security and Fire Alarms in the building.

RATIONALE FOR PROJECT
There are a number of reasons for undertaking this project, and they are listed below:
1. Although the boiler is only 8 years old, the building does not benefit from this due to
the old heating pipes, and the costs of heating the building currently are significant,
and even with the heat on for extended times during the colder winter months, we
find that whether we are in church for worship, or community events, we are in a
very cold, uncomfortable building.
2. The church is not energy efficient and updating all of these systems (heating \ lighting
etc) would allow us to greatly improve our ‘green credentials’
3. The nave is very restrictive, and although we make the best possible use of it, we are
still greatly restricted form doing anything which would require free access to the
space that we have available, this work would allow for full flexibility for any event.
4. The church is by far the largest building in the area and we know that it is
underutilised not by choice, but by constraint.
5. The pews that we have are approximately 100 years old, very plain and have little
significant historical value, and the current pews in the balcony (which would have
been the commoner’s seats 200 years ago) are of a poor-quality pitch pine.
Although there would be no pews retained in the Nave, we would utilise as many of
these as we could upstairs to create seating for larger events. The Choir Stalls do
not fall into the remit of this project and are not being touched.
6. The church had begun saving for a smaller project a few years ago, and since we
started fundraising a little over a year ago. Additionally, the church has a piece of
land (approx. 1 acre, which is no longer utilised, and The Charities Commission has
now given permission for this to be sold, and the proceeds of the sale to be added

Page 74

Page 5 of 13

to the pot of money set aside for this project. Given that many grant making bodies
like to see match funding, we are confident that this will put us in a good position.
7. In the past, the church had been able to fully meet its commitments to the Diocese,
however in more recent years, due to a number of circumstances, this was not
possible. Over the past two years, due to good financial management and being wise
in how we spend our money, that pattern has now been re-established. Whilst it is
acknowledged that this work will greatly benefit the church, it also greatly benefits
the community as it is through the church and the community working symbiotically
that allows for mutual flourishing, and as long as the church remains in the heart of
Littleborough, we want to not only be able to meet our commitments to the
Diocese, but also to the community that we serve. Therefore, this project is in the
interests of everyone.
8. Three immediate ways in which this project can save \ earn us money are:
a. Updating the heating and other element of the building will provide significant
cost savings, and it will allow the church to make significant steps towards
being Eco friendly.
b. Having a church which is flexible enough to be used by others, will give us the
opportunity to:
i. Continue to build good strong connections with our community, so
that they see us as a place where they can come, not just for worship,
but also a place where they are welcome, and they come to see it as
theirs.
ii. The more it is used, will allow us to earn some additional income,
which can help us to meet our annual financial obligations, and do
more for our community.
c. There has been a church here in this place for almost 550 years, having the
opportunity to now give it a much-needed update and refresh, coupled with
the above provides us the best possible chance to ensure that the church
remains an integral part of our community, and gives us a fighting chance of
handing down the building to the care of future generations. None of which
will be possible if the church has closed.

How Project 2020 will benefit people
As the project has many facets, we perceive a number of positive differences which the
successful completion will offer:
1. A facility which can be hired at a reasonable price to give our community access to
events \ groups which are currently not possible to hold within the locality.
2. Organisations that have long since moved out of the area due to not having a suitable
venue, being able to re-establish a base (e.g. the national blood service)
3. Enable the church to support small groups who have lost their regular meeting place,
and do not have the funds to move to a public venue (e.g. Uniformed organisations \
The Royal British Legion)
4. It will allow the church to significantly improve its Green credentials with a large
decrease to our carbon footprint.
Additionally, this project is by far the biggest outreach to the local community that has been
undertaken in the parish for a good number of years. Littleborough is ranked at 2886 in the
Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), 15% of the children, 12% working age and 17% of
pensioners in the parish live in poverty, we rate at 20.4 on the IMD, which includes 23.8 on
Education skills and training, 11.3 Barriers to housing and services, and 41.8 in living

Page 75

Page 6 of 13

environment. In addition, 10% of the population is out of work, and 30% are lone parent
households.
The fulfilment of this project would give the people of the area a chance to grow in all
manner of ways. This is the most important criteria which the church will judge if the
project is successful.
We are not naïve in thinking that this change will happen overnight, but we are committed
to helping the people of Littleborough to raise their quality of life by accessing facilities
which are affordable, and also designed for a variety of activities
Experience has shown us that in the past the reputation of Holy Trinity was not very good.
A great deal of work has been done on this, predominantly through the outreach of our
Youth Theatre, where initially parents would happily allow their children to come, but they
themselves would not step over the threshold.
Over the years this perceived historical mistrust of the church by the parents (as they had
been forced to go in their younger days) has been replaced by a much more positive
experience, where they are happy to enter, and even help in a variety of ways.
This culture of change is already evident in our young people who make-up the theatre, as
they have successfully formed a community of trust and support not only for each other, but
also as part of Holy Trinity and our community.
It is our vision for Holy Trinity, that through the work we will undertake, and the warm and
welcoming attitude that the church has, will allow us to continue to reclaim our place
rooted deep within the community that we serve through our new facilities and the
opportunities it will give us.

Moving Forward
The current estimate for the work is £430,000 and whilst we appreciate that a project of
this size and complexity is a major undertaking, it is the firm view of the church that it
would be better to do it as one piece of work, rather than doing it in stages. Current
estimates suggest that if we were to completely shut the Church for up to six – seven
months, then the entire project could be completed. It would also mean that additional
labour \ building costs could be kept to a minimum, thus reducing the overall bottom line.
We have a timeframe in mind, and it is not a coincidence that we have called it Project
2020, because on the 3rd August, the Church is 200 years old. We can think of no better
way to celebrate its bi-centennial, than preparing it for its next 200 years of service to its
community.
Start – Close Church after Christmas Day 2019, and de-camp Sunday worship to Holy
Trinity School. Work would then begin, and be completed at the latest during w\c 20th July
2020. The Church would then re-open on Sunday 2nd August 2020 for its Bi-Centennial
celebrations.
We recognise that this is will be a challenge, but it is one that we are prepared to take on as
a church.

Page 76

Page 7 of 13

Funding Strategy
The church has so far raised £80,000 and this includes the sale of an acre of land which the
church has recently sold to aid in our fund raising, and we have also now received a grant
from The Beatrice Laing Trust for £5,000.
In the meantime, the parish has a full schedule of event running through this year, and is
continuing to create opportunities to fundraise.
We are also in the midst of writing to a variety of grant making bodies, and the Diocese of
Manchester are being very helpful in suggesting additional avenues for us to explore.
Recently we have set ourselves up with Wonderful, a crowd funding site who help charities
in raising funds without taking fees for pledges. As The Diocese of Manchester are working
very closely with this company, they have offered to feature our project and we are in the
process of putting together a short video to highlight the benefits of the project as we have
just had 3D scans made of the church as part of this project.
Until we go out to tender, which will happen in a few months’ time, the exact cost of the
project will not be known, as this will come down to the companies who bid for the work,
however, the cost that we have put onto the project is based upon previous work that our
Vicar has carried out in another post, and discussions with our Architect. It is also worth
noting that as this is a capital expenditure project, we will be able to claim the VAT on the
work back through the Listed Places of Worship Grant Scheme (LPW).

Page 77

Page 8 of 13

CHURCH IMAGES
View of Church Exterior

Page 78

Page 9 of 13

Views of Chancel and Sanctuary

Page 79

Page 10 of 13

View of Chancel Roof Angels

Sanctuary Reredos

Page 80

Page 11 of 13

View of Nave – West

Panoramic view of Nave East

Page 81

Page 12 of 13

Chancel ready for World War 1 Centenary Concert

Holy Trinity Youth Theatre Production of The Sound of Music 2018

Page 82

Page 13 of 13

Page 83

Page 84

Page 85

Page 86

Page 87

Page 88

Page 89

Page 90

Page 91

Page 92

Page 93

Page 94

APPENDIX 4E

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM

Township Ref

Township

Pennines

Name of Request Originator

Hamer Community Primary School

Project Manager & Ext

Nathan McKendrey

Completed by

Hannah Mills

Service Ref

PTC/17/19

Date Completed

07/11/19

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Calder Street extension of no waiting restrictions, installation of
bollards, guard rails and pedestrian dropped crossing.

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

We have received reports from Hamer Community Primary School and
PCSOs concerning the numerous car incidents due to parking at school
times. A Township Officer has requested Highways look into this issue
on behalf of Hamer School. It is understood that vehicles should drive
into the school grounds using a one way system. This does not appear
to be happening with vehicles indiscriminately parking along Calder
Street causing congestion and damage to other vehicles.
Highways recommend extending the no waiting and no loading
restrictions both sides of Calder Street.
Highways also plan to introduce a dropped crossing 15 metres North
East from the junction of Calder Street with Albert Royds Street.
Guard rail will be installed to guide pedestrians to the crossing point
and prevent children from running from the pedestrian access gate into
the carriageway. The combination of guard rail and bollards will be
installed to prevent vehicles from mounting on to the footway.

Scheme comments from
Highways

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)
Township Priorities Met

TRO – £4000
Civils (guardrail, bollards & dropped crossing) - £4000
Total - £8000
Reduce vehicles dropping off/picking up causing congested and
hazardous driving and parking conditions at the school entrance.
Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate

Page 95

•

The scheme content is fully understood by the Township Committee and has the full support of the
Township Committee, especially the local ward councilors.

•

There will be no amendments to the schemes once commissioning documents have been
approved and signed off.

•

The promotion of a Traffic Order is a statutory process and must be completed accordingly.

•

The estimate does not include for dealing with or reporting back to committee any objections
received during the legal process. To deal with objections may increase the cost due to staff time
having to be expended.

•

This estimate assumes that there will be no major amendments made to scheme at committee
resulting the scheme requiring re-advertising.

Risks that may change estimate
• Objections being received during the legal process or amendments made to the scheme during its
development will result in additional costs.
•

The scheme requires amendments so as to satisfy the requirements of the emergency services or
TfGM.

•

Ward Councillors require further information, justification or scheme content.
£500 (civils)

Total Estimated Fees

£3,500 (TRO)

+

Total Estimated Works Costs

£500 (TRO)

£3500 (civils)

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£8 000

+

=

=

£4000
£4,000

Cost Code

Amount Approved by Township
C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

To be assessed on receipt of the signed commissioning document.

Evidence
•

A start date will be identified once the commissioning document has been approved and received
by Highways, this will be depend on staff availability and workload.

.

It is envisaged that a start date will be within 6 months of receiving the commission.

•

Evidence of the work commencing will be the expenditure of fees

Completion Date

Dependent on start date but will be at least 6 months after
commencement of design

Evidence
•

A completion date will be dependent on the availability of staff both in Highways and Legal.

•

It will also be dependent on the level of objection should that be the case.

•

Evidence of the completion of works on site and settlement of final account.

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee

LDate Committee Approved Scheme

Page 96

Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Principal
xxxxxxxxxTownships
Officer & Communities Manager
xxxxxxxx

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

,

F. BENEFITSIOUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.

KEY
•

To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 97

Page 98

From: Sajda Sultana
Sent: 12 June 2019 15:04
To: Tracey Knight
Subject: Hamer Primary School

Hello Tracey,
Further to our conversation on Monday I have outlined below some of the parking issues we are
having at Hamer School.
Following many years of unsafe driving and parking around school, leading to complaints from
members of the public and parents, we have recently experienced:
• 2 minor collisions on the school driveway involving cars
• a parent being skimmed by a car on a crossing at school.
Problems are exacerbated by poor car park design and lack of capacity. We are concerned that if
problems persist, someone will be hurt.
A petition was sent to the police, highways, environmental health and GFM (the PFI facilities
management company) in April 2019.
The PCSO’s who visited the school on Monday suggested extending the yellow lines on CalderStreet
and possibly having bollards to deter drivers from parking on the pavement to the entrance into the
school car park. Alan Shaw also said the drains were blocked and that there was a GPO box that
drivers were parking on which if damaged would affect the phone lines in the area.
Any support or advice you can offer would be hugely appreciated as the safety of the children is
our priority.
Kind regards
Sajda
Sajda Sultana
School Business Manager
Hamer Community Primary School
Albert Royds Street, Rochdale OL16 2SU
Tel:
Fax:
Email:
Website: www.hamerprimary.co.uk

Page 99

APPENDIX 4F

TOWNSHIP PROJECT BRIEF AND
COMMISSIONING FORM (2019/20)
Township

Pennines

Name of Request Originator

Councillor Aftab Hussain

Project Manager & Ext

Chris Woods x 4615

Completed by

Chris Woods

Township Ref

Service Ref

PCW/06/19

Date Completed

09/12/2019

A. DETAILS OF SCHEME
Scheme Name & Location

Footway between 1-3 Ditton Mead Close

Scheme Description (include
as much information as
possible)

To install 1no. bollard on the footway that runs between 1-3 Ditton
Mead Close to prevent parking on the footway.

Scheme comments from
Highways

Highways support the proposal as it will remove parking from the
footway.

Desired Outcome (what is
required by the scheme)

Installation of bollard to prevent parking.

Township Priorities Met

Place

Land Owner

Rochdale Council

Public Consultation

Yes

Proposed Source of Funding

Township Capital

B. ESTIMATE
Assumptions made during preparation of estimate
None.

Risks that may change estimate
Complaints received which delay or alter the scheme.

Total Estimated Fees

£25.00

Total Estimated Works Costs

£125.00

**Total Cost
Estimate valid for a 6 month period

£150.00

Amount Approved by Township

Page 100

Cost Code

C. TIMESCALES
Estimated Start Date

Within 2 months of receiving commission

(start date subject to commissioning within three months of application)
Evidence
Evidence: Bollard installed

Completion Date

Completion within 1 day of start date

Evidence
Evidence: completion of works on site and settlement of final account

D. AUTHORISATION
I have read the terms and conditions provided with this form and agree to the funds being
allocated as approved at Committee
Date Committee Approved Scheme
Signature of Head of Service

Date

Signature of Townships &
Communities Manager

Date

Signature of Township Chair

Date

E. BENEFITS/OUTCOMES (FOR COMPLETION BY HIGHWAYS & ENGINEERING SERVICE ONLY)
TAMP Objectives
Accessibility
Condition
Township Priority

X

LTP Criteria
Improve Safety
Accident Reduction
Reduce Congestion
Improve Network

** Based on decision to proceed given in (timescale) and including scope/assumptions are correct.
KEY
To be completed by whoever receives the original proposal
To be completed by Service/Provider after discussion with the Township Office
To be completed by Township Councillor/Officer

Page 101

X

X

